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IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT 
FOR THE DISTRICT OF DELAWARE 

 
GUILD FOREST LLC,    § 
      §   
 Plaintiff,    §  Case No: 

      §   
vs.      §   PATENT CASE 
      § 
MYSPACE LLC,    §  JURY TRIAL DEMANDED 
      § 
 Defendant.    § 
_____________________________________ §  
 
 

COMPLAINT 
 
 Plaintiff Guild Forest LLC (“Plaintiff” or “Guild Forest”) files this Complaint against 

Myspace LLC (“Defendant” or “Myspace”) for infringement of United States Patent No. 

8,046,697 (hereinafter “the ‘697 Patent”). 

PARTIES AND JURISDICTION 

 1. This is an action for patent infringement under Title 35 of the United States Code. 

Plaintiff is seeking injunctive relief as well as damages. 

 2.  Jurisdiction is proper in this Court pursuant to 28 U.S.C. §§ 1331 (Federal 

Question) and 1338(a) (Patents) because this is a civil action for patent infringement arising under 

the United States patent statutes.  

 3. Plaintiff is a Texas limited liability company with its office address at 3000 Custer 

Rd., Suite 270-7003, Plano, TX 75075.  

 4. On information and belief, Defendant is a Delaware limited liability company with 

a principal address of 8391 Beverly Boulevard Suite 349, Los Angeles, CA 90048.  On information 

and belief, Defendant may be served with process through its agent, Corporation Trust Company, 

Corporation Trust Center, 1209 Orange Street, Wilmington, DE  19801. 
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 5. On information and belief, this Court has personal jurisdiction over Defendant 

because Defendant has committed, and continues to commit, acts of infringement in this District, 

has conducted business in this District, and/or has engaged in continuous and systematic activities 

in this District. 

 6. On information and belief, Defendant’s instrumentalities that are alleged herein to 

infringe were and continue to be used, imported, offered for sale, and/or sold in this District.  

VENUE 

 7. Venue is proper in this District pursuant to 28 U.S.C. § 1400(b) because Defendant 

is deemed to reside in this District.  

COUNT I 
(INFRINGEMENT OF UNITED STATES PATENT NO. 8,046,697) 

 
 8. Plaintiff incorporates paragraphs 1 through 7 herein by reference.  

 9. This cause of action arises under the patent laws of the United States and, in 

particular, under 35 U.S.C. §§ 271, et seq.  

 10. Plaintiff is the owner by assignment of the ‘697 Patent with sole rights to enforce 

the ‘697 Patent and sue infringers.  

 11. A copy of the ‘697 Patent, titled “System and Method for Customizing an Interface 

Related to Accessing, Manipulating and Viewing Internet and Non-internet Related Information,” 

is attached hereto as Exhibit A. 

 12. The ‘697 Patent is valid, enforceable, and was duly issued in full compliance with 

Title 35 of the United States Code. 

 13. On information and belief, Defendant has infringed and continues to infringe one 

or more claims, including at least Claim 1, 2, 8, and 9 of the ‘697 Patent by making, using 

(including during testing and maintenance), importing, selling, and/or offering devices, platforms, 
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systems, and/or methods for creating a user profile for use in Internet-based advertising, which 

is/are covered by at least Claims 1, 2, 8, and 9 of the ‘697 Patent. Defendant has infringed and 

continues to infringe the ‘697 patent directly in violation of 35 U.S.C. § 271. 

 14. Defendant sells, offers to sell, and/or uses social media platforms, such as 

Myspace.com, and any similar products (“Product”), which infringe at least Claims 1, 2, 8, and 9 

of the ‘697 Patent. 

 15. Regarding Claim 1, the Product creates a user profile (e.g., a user profile for online 

interest-based advertising) in a computer implemented guide on a computer system (e.g., the 

Myspace.com server).  The Product creates a user profile when the user creates an account at 

Myspace.com. The Product collects basic user information (e.g., user name, age etc.) from the 

user’s Myspace account information. The Product also monitors the user’s activity on 

Myspace.com and learns about the user’s interests (e.g., a user’s likes, follows, and browsed 

interests etc.).   The accused system also scans local applications (e.g., GPS application, etc.) of 

the user computer and scans data therein (e.g., GPS data, etc.). These elements are illustrated in 

the screen shots below and/or in screen shots provided in connection with other allegations herein. 
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 16. The Product creates a user profile database (e.g., a Myspace user profile database 

for advertisement) for storing user profile parameters (e.g., location, user device, education, age, 

etc.).  The Product derives user profile parameters (e.g., location, user device, education, age, etc.) 

from basic information in a Myspace user account, monitors interests based on user activity, and 

also collects local application data (e.g., GPS data etc.) from a user’s device.  The Product creates 

a database for storing the user profile parameters for use in directed advertising.  These elements 

are illustrated in the screen shots provided in connection with other allegations herein. 

 17. The Product monitors a user's interactions (e.g., browsing, following, or liking) 

from a user computer (e.g., a smartphone enabled with the Myspace app, a computer, or a laptop) 

with remote Web (e.g., the activity on the Myspace.com website or on other third party websites 

which are partnered with Myspace.com) and non-Web related (e.g., gathered device data such as 

Case 1:18-cv-01479-UNA   Document 1   Filed 09/25/18   Page 15 of 25 PageID #: 15



PLAINTIFF’S COMPLAINT AGAINST DEFENDANT MYSPACE LLC  | 16 

mobile/network operator, ISP, time zone, signal strength, message, etc.) sources of content.  The 

Product utilizes cookies to monitor a user’s interactions (e.g., what is liked, browsed, bought) on 

Myspace.com or partnered third party websites. The accused system also utilizes cookies to 

monitor non-web related information such as off site, mobile/network operator, messages, signal 

strength, etc.  These elements are illustrated in the screen shots below and/or in screen shots 

provided in connection with other allegations herein. 
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 18. The Product scans local memory (e.g., a user device’s storage) of the user computer 

(e.g., a smartphone enabled with Myspace app, a computer, or a laptop) to examine local 

applications (e.g., Myspace will scan local applications on a user computer such as a location 

application, or media managing applications to collect data).  The Product extracts information 

about local applications (e.g., location application, or media manager application) of a user 

computer.  These elements are illustrated in the screen shots provided in connection with other 

allegations herein. 

 19. The Product scans local memory (e.g., storage of a user device) of the user 
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computer (e.g., a smartphone with Myspace app, a computer, a laptop) to examine local application 

applications (e.g., local applications of a user computer such as location application, media 

manager application (i.e., gallery), etc.) data information content (e.g., GPS data, media 

files/photos/videos, etc.).  The Product reads local application data (e.g., GPS data etc.) from local 

applications (e.g., local applications of a user computer such as location application, media 

manager application (i.e., gallery), etc.) of a user computer (e.g., a smartphone with Myspace app, 

a computer, a laptop).  These elements are illustrated in the screen shots provided in connection 

with other allegations herein. 

 20. The Product determines interests of the user based on said steps of scanning (e.g., 

the accused system scans a location application of a user computer to determine GPS data of the 

user computer to determine interests a user might have based upon their location), the interests 

comprising at least one interest that is not selected from a predefined list of potential interests (e.g., 

interest in content tied to a particular location that is determined based on GPS data is not selected 

by a user from a predefined list). The Product determines user interest based on a user’s location 

so that advertisements related to said location can be appropriately served to the user. These 

elements are illustrated in the screen shots provided in connection with other allegations herein. 

 21. The Product automatically derives user profile parameters (e.g., location, user 

device, user device operating system, about, etc.) based on said step of monitoring and said steps 

of scanning (e.g. the accused system will gather user information by monitoring user activity on 

the Myspace.com website and scanning a user device for data such as GPS coordinates etc.). These 

elements are illustrated in the screen shots provided in connection with other allegations herein. 

 22. The Product updates the user profile database (e.g., a Myspace user profile database 

used for advertisement purposes) based on the user's use of the computer system (e.g., a user’s 
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access of Myspace).  The Product updates a database (i.e., user profile database) for storing user 

profile parameters with newly derived user profile parameters (e.g., geographical location, age, 

etc.) so that customized and targeted advertisements can be served. These elements are illustrated 

in the screen shots provided in connection with other allegations herein. 

 23. Regarding Claim 2, the Product uses the user profile parameters are used to identify 

new content items of interest to the user.  The Product updates the user profile database (e.g., a 

Myspace user profile database used for advertisement purposes) based on the user's use of the 

computer system (e.g., a user’s access of Myspace).  The Product updates a database (i.e., user 

profile database) for storing user profile parameters with newly derived user profile parameters 

(e.g., geographical location, age, etc.) so that customized and targeted advertisements can be 

served.  These elements are illustrated in the screen shots provided in connection with other 

allegations herein. 

 24. Regarding Claim 8, the Product derives a plurality of sets of user profile parameters 

for a plurality of users, each of the plurality of sets being derived according to the activity of that 

user.  The Product updates the user profile database (e.g., a Myspace user profile database used for 

advertisement purposes) based on the user's use of the computer system (e.g., a user’s access of 

Myspace).  The Product updates a database (i.e., user profile database) for storing user profile 

parameters with newly derived user profile parameters (e.g., geographical location, age, etc.) so 

that customized and targeted advertisements can be served.  These elements are illustrated in the 

screen shots provided in connection with other allegations herein. 

 25. Regarding Claim 9, the Product uses the plurality of sets of user profile parameters 

to identify new content items for the respective users.  The Product updates the user profile 

database (e.g., a Myspace user profile database used for advertisement purposes) based on the 
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user's use of the computer system (e.g., a user’s access of Myspace).  The Product updates a 

database (i.e., user profile database) for storing user profile parameters with newly derived user 

profile parameters (e.g., geographical location, age, etc.) so that customized and targeted 

advertisements can be served.  These elements are illustrated in the screen shots provided in 

connection with other allegations herein.  

 26. Defendant’s actions complained of herein will continue unless Defendant is 

enjoined by this court. 

 27. Defendant’s actions complained of herein are causing irreparable harm and 

monetary damage to Plaintiff and will continue to do so unless and until Defendant is enjoined and 

restrained by this Court. 

 28. Plaintiff is in compliance with 35 U.S.C. § 287. 

PRAYER FOR RELIEF 

 WHEREFORE, Plaintiff asks the Court to: 

 (a) Enter judgment for Plaintiff on this Complaint on all causes of action asserted 

herein; 

 (b) Enter an Order enjoining Defendant, its agents, officers, servants, employees, 

attorneys, and all persons in active concert or participation with Defendant who receive notice of 

the order from further infringement of United States Patent No. 8,046,697 (or, in the alternative, 

awarding Plaintiff a running royalty from the time of judgment going forward); 

 (c) Award Plaintiff damages resulting from Defendant’s infringement in accordance 

with 35 U.S.C. § 284; 

 (d) Award Plaintiff pre-judgment and post-judgment interest and costs; and 

 (e) Award Plaintiff such further relief to which the Court finds Plaintiff entitled under 
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law or equity. 

  

Case 1:18-cv-01479-UNA   Document 1   Filed 09/25/18   Page 24 of 25 PageID #: 24



PLAINTIFF’S COMPLAINT AGAINST DEFENDANT MYSPACE LLC  | 25 

Dated: September 25, 2018    Respectfully submitted, 

       DEVLIN LAW FIRM LLC  

/s/ Timothy Devlin  
Timothy Devlin (#4241) 
tdevlin@devlinlawfirm.com 
1306 N. Broom St., 1st Floor 
Wilmington, Delaware 19806 
Telephone: (302) 449-9010 
Facsimile: (302) 353-4251 

 
 

JAY JOHNSON 
State Bar No. 24067322 
D. BRADLEY KIZZIA 
State Bar No. 11547550 
KIZZIA JOHNSON, PLLC 
1910 Pacific Ave., Suite 13000 
Dallas, Texas 75201 
(214) 451-0164 
Fax: (214) 451-0165 
jay@kjpllc.com  
bkizzia@kjpllc.com 

 
     ATTORNEYS FOR PLAINTIFF 
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